ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 25, 2003
8:01 a.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
MEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Max Gruenberg

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

Comm ssi oner, Departnment of Adm nistration

Mke MIler - Juneau
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

HOUSE BILL NO. 15

"An Act relating to establishing the Alaska No-Call List, a data
base of residential telephone custonmers who do not wish to
receive telephonic solicitations; providing that the data base
be conmpiled at no cost to the custoners; requiring paid
tel ephonic sellers to purchase the data Dbase; requiring
tel ephonic sellers to identify thenselves; requiring telephonic
solicitors who are otherwise exenpt from registration as
tel ephonic solicitors to file with the Departnent of Law and
purchase the data base; and providing for an effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 25, 2003



M KE M LLER, Conmi ssi oner

Department of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointed conm ssioner of the
Department of Adm nistration.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-13, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:01 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seaton, Berkowitz, and Wyhrauch were present at the call to
order. Representatives Dahlstrom and Lynn arrived as the
nmeeting was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

Comm ssi oner, Departnment of Adm nistration

Nunmber 0030

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that the conmttee would consider the
appointment of Mke MIller to the position of conm ssioner of
the Departnent of Adm nistration. He comented that M. Mller
conmes before the committee with an extensive background. He
invited M. Mller to provide opening renmarks and answer
questi ons.

Nunmber 0206

M KE M LLER, Comnm ssioner, Departnent of Adm nistration (DA,
told the conmttee he was born in Fairbanks and raised in North
Pol e. He received all of his education in Al aska, including
sonme studies at the University of Alaska. He spent some tinme in
the Alaska Air National Guard in the early '70s. He noted that
he grew up "in a famly business", since his parents started the
Santa Clause House [in North Pole] in 1952. He worked for a
short time on the Trans-Alaska Pipeline, and worked in a
war ehouse i n Fairbanks for five years as a Teanster.

COW SSI ONER M LLER told nenbers that in 1976 he was elected to
the North Pole City Council and served for four years. He
opined that spending tinme on |ocal government is nuch tougher
than spending tinme in state governnment, saying the issues are
different and people take it nuch nore personally. He noted

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 25, 2003



that he was elected to the state House of Representatives in
[ 1982] and spent ten years there, followed by eight years in the
Senate. During that tine, he held a nunber of chairmanships, as
well as the office of Senate president from 1997-1998, which he
said was the highlight of his Senate tenure.

COW SSIONER M LLER told the conmttee that he has been invol ved
in a nunber of church, local, and other political activities, in
organi zati ons such as the Fairbanks Chanber of Comrerce and the
North Pol e Chanmber of Commerce; |ast year, he was elected vice
chairman of the North Pole Housing Association. He said he is
married, has two daughters, and is a grandfather.

Number 0528

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked Commi ssioner MIler to comment on
reorgani zati on of the departnent.

COM SSIONER M LLER said there has been discussion of
reorgani zation, but it isn't concrete yet. One question being
asked is whether sone services currently provided by DOA could
be better provided by the Departnent of Health & Social Services

(DHSS), such as sone senior services. In further response, he
said the public defender's office and OPA [Ofice of Public
Advocacy] wll stay w thin DOA In response to a question by

Chair Weyhrauch, he indicated there had been discussion of
whet her the Departnment of Law or the courts mght be a place
where those would fit in; however, the courts are a separate
branch of governnment and weren't interested, and there could

have been sone conflict of interest. Thus those two agencies
wll remain wthin DOA where there isn't a conflict of
i nterest. He said that he's gotten to know the two directors

there; he opined that they're doing a good job. He added t hat
the job of public defender isn't a popul ar one.

Nunmber 0728

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH said there's talk of formng a centralized panel
of hearing officers. He asked Comm ssioner MIller how many
divisions within DOA have their own hearing officers.

COW SSI ONER M LLER said he didn't know, but could find out in
time for the upcomng departnent overview [before this
commttee]. He said the idea was centered on the tax office set
up a nunber of years ago in DOA He said he has talked to a
nunber of individuals who have gone through that process; even
those who'd lost had believed they received due process. He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 25, 2003



stated that it is his goal to work with the legislature "to see
if we can set this up, but we may not be able to set it up."” He
expressed the desire to ensure that it's cost-effective and will
work, and indicated the formit would take isn't set yet; it's
an evol ving process. He added, "The legislature's taking the
| ead on that, and we're just offering any assistance."

Nunmber 0876

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked Comm ssioner MIller to describe
his philosophy towards the state enployee unions and what
approaches he wuld be taking regarding recruiting and
retention.

COMM SSI ONER M LLER replied that he thinks that the workforce in
the State of Alaska is very inportant. There are 12 separate
contracts currently being negoti at ed. He indicated that there
is an offer on the table fromthe adm nistration, which includes
$75 a nonth for health insurance and "a one-year rollover on the

contract.” He noted that a nunber of the unions are discussing
[ contracts]. He said [DOA] is working closely with its "l abor
people” to understand each contract. As for recruitnment, he

opined that there were very helpful things done by the prior
adm nistration. He mentioned Wrkplace Al aska as a good tool to
recruit people into state service.

COWM SSI ONER M LLER offered his philosophy that the state needs
a well-trained and well-paid workforce; however, it does not
need to be at the top or bottom of the [pay] scale. He said he
has found his enployees to be very dedicated public servants

He posited that this is true of 99.9 percent of state workers.
He said he would work hard to nake sure that qualified people
fill jobs. He noted that he has already [approved] a nunber of
travel requests for people who need "upgrading in education."”

Nunmber 1083

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked who is working as liaison with the unions
in the negotiation of contracts.

COMWM SSI ONER M LLER answered that [ Governor Mirkowski] brought
in Andy Warwick and Bill Hudson, both forner |egislators and
former comm ssioners of [DOA]. He said they've started to do
sonme of the groundwork regarding the nonetary issues on the
upcom ng contracts that will be expiring June 30 [2003], to his
belief. He also nentioned a "labor relations departnment” within

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 25, 2003



DOA, and [Art] Chance, who is the manager of that division and
does the | egwork and the negotiations of the contracts.

Nunber 1175

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked Comm ssioner MIller what his priorities in
DOA are.

COW SSI ONER M LLER answered that, first, he wants to nake DOA a
very well-rounded departnent. He said he has told sone of
directors that he wll place high standards on the departnent
and wants it to be a tenplate for how other agencies should run
- open and overboard. He added, "We're charged with delivering
a service to the people of the state of Al aska, and we take our
orders from the legislature and from the governor, and whatever
those services are that we're supposed to deliver, ny charge is
to deliver themefficiently and properly.”

Nunmber 1263

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that one major thenme set forth by
[ Governor Murkowski] 1is streamining regulations. He asked
Comm ssioner MIler if that would al so be a goal for DQCA

COMWM SSIONER M LLER answered that it should be a goal of all
departnents, to make regul ations understandable to the average

person in Al aska. He said he is [aware] that regulations
sonetinmes don't follow legislative intent. He said another of
his goals is that [regul ations] should follow | egislative intent
and, if the intent is unclear, he said it will be his charge to

ask the legislature for clarification.
Nunber 1368

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to APOC [Alaska Public Ofices
Commi ssion] and nentioned an "alnost wunintelligible set of
regul ations and instructions. He asked, "WIIl that be one of
the areas that you try to nmake clear, within the Departnent of
Adm ni strati on?”

COW SSI ONER M LLER answered that [DOA] needs to work with the
board [of APOC] in finding out the intent of the regul ations.

Number 1436

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said, "W've heard that you've gone
through 5 and 10 percent cut scenarios, and you know how

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 25, 2003



frustrating it is to sit on this side of the table and ask for
sonething and not get them"” He indicated that Commr ssioner
MIller nmay have sonme synpathy for [the legislature s] plight,
and asked him for his views regarding a 5 and 10 percent
scenario for DOA

COM SSI ONER M LLER replied that the departnment "threw out those
5 and 10 percent scenarios" because sone of them didn't nake
sense. For exanmple, there's no way that OPA and the public
defenders could take even a 1 percent cut. He nentioned a
suppl ement al budget asking for nore noney. He said each section
Wi thin his departnment was considered for cuts; he cited exanples
including the comm ssioner's office and the Division of WMtor

Vehicles (DW). In further response, he said public
broadcasting will probably "take a small hit" of less than 10
per cent .

Nunber 1560

CHAIR VWEYHRAUCH said the legislature uses intent |anguage "to
hel p guide inplementation of individual or collective concepts
or priorities.” He asked Conmi ssioner Mller what his
phi |l osophy is regarding intent |anguage.

COWMWM SSI ONER M LLER responded that he is a very strong believer
in intent |anguage and in "the legislative side of the aisle in
giving guidance to the admnistration on the direction [it]

wants to see a program go." He explained that this is the
reason he wants to ensure that when regulations are witten, the
intent of legislation is followed. He said if there is intent
| anguage that cannot be inplenmented, he will be the first person
to tell the legislature why it cannot be done. He concl uded
that it wll be his intent to follow the direction of the

| egi sl ature, whether it be in the actual statute or in intent
| anguage.

Nunber 1640

REPRESENTATI VE BERKON TZ pointed out that intent |anguage
normally is attached to the budget and expresses |egislative

i ntent. He noted that the argunent against intent |anguage is
that it's outside the scope of what's appropriate in a budget.
He added, "The governor has, | think, uniformy ... disregarded

intent | anguage, and it's always a contentious issue."

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked Comm ssioner MIller why he is qualified to
be the conm ssioner of DOA.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 25, 2003



COWM SSI ONER M LLER said he has asked hinself the sanme question,
and was both surprised and pl eased when the governor called him
The departnent has such a wde range of issues that it deals
with, including public defenders, Pioneers' Hones, and DW,; he
said sonetines it's hard to wunderstand why sone of those
agencies are [within] DOA. He told the conmttee he has had the
history of being an administrator in his famly business and

during his tinme in the |egislature. He said he thinks the
comm ssioner of DOA will work nore closely with the legislature
because of all the different issues that that departnent wll
touch at sonme point or another. He said a good working
relationship with the legislature is inportant and he hopes he
has one. He concluded by saying this is part of how he can
repay the state for all it has done for himand his famly.
Nunber 1807

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH expressed appreciation for the trenendous anount
of public service to the state given by Comm ssioner Ml er.

COM SSIONER M LLER introduced sone of his nanagenent team
menbers and said he has pride in the directors in his agency.

[Although no formal notion was nmade, the confirmation of
Comm ssioner MIler was advanced from the House State Affairs
St andi ng Comm ttee.]

ADJ OQURNVENT

Nunber 1976

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
8:25 a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 25, 2003



